
CITY OF CORVALLIS 
MINUTES OF THE CIVIC BEAUTIFICATION AND URBAN FORESTRY 

COMMISSION 
MARCH 8, 2012 

 
Attendance 
Angelica Rehkugler- Chair 
Tim Brewer, Vice Chair 
Tony Livermore 
Becki Goslow 
Ross Parkerson 
Larry Passmore 
 
Absent/Excused 
Kent Daniels 
Dan Bregar 
Joe Majeski, OSU Liaison 

 
Staff 
Dave Phillips, Park Operations Supervisor 
Becky Merja, Urban Forester 
John Hinkle, Park Ops. Specialist 
Mark Lindgren, Recorder 
 
Visitors 
John Hinkle 

 
SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

 
Agenda Item 

 
Information 

Only 

 
Held for  

Further  

Review 

 
Recommendations 

 
II.  Review of Minutes 

       
      X 

  

III. Visitor Propositions 
 

 
      X 

  

IV. Staff Reports- if questions 
 

      X   

V. City Council/ OSU Liaison 
Reports 

      X   

VI. Report on Subcommittees  
      X 

  

VII. Break into Subcommittees 
 

 
      X 

  
 

VIII. Adjournment  
       X 

 The next CBUF meeting will be at 8 a.m. April 12, 2012, at the 
Parks and Rec Conference Room. 

 
CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Rehkugler called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m.  
 

II. REVIEW OF MINUTES.  Parkerson moved and Livermore seconded to approve February 9, 2012 
minutes as presented; motion passed.  
 

III. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS.  None. 
 

IV. STAFF REPORTS- IF QUESTIONS. 
Forester Becky Merja reported that Friends of Trees (FOT) set up a satellite group for areas south of 
Portland, including Corvallis. She contacted the FOT intern, Aaron Lesan. The group wanted to know if 
CBUF is interested in partnering, and staff indicated that Corvallis was. Members asked Merja to set up 
a meeting with the Eugene FOT Director, Eric Burke, next month. This would be prior to the 

hart
Draft



Minutes of Civic Beautification and Urban Forestry Commission, March 8, 2012 Page 2 

 

Neighborhood Forestry Program planning effort; FOT could assist with how to set up volunteering and 
other issues.  
 
Merja related that FOT spends a lot of time training volunteers to plant, prune, and maintain trees; this 
component fits well with the planned Neighborhood Forestry program. She related that the OSU 
Horticulture Club is volunteering with structural pruning of small street trees.  
 
Dave Phillips related that the Corvallis Loop pipeline project has undergone changes in proposed 
locations over time. Currently an alignment generally through public right of way is proposed, with 
very little of it on Parks property. It would go through the edge of Orleans Natural Area, under the 
Willamette River, emerging at First Street and proceeding down Washington Avenue to OSU. 
Parkerson advocated that the project receive more attention, especially given the degree of disruption. 
Phillips said the gas line would serve a gas hub at OSU. He said Northwest Natural contends that the 
existing system does not have enough capacity; he noted that the Osborn Aquatic Center sometimes 
gets cuts in service due to lack of supply. He will report further as the project progresses.   
 
Phillips related that he and consultant Conservation Techniques will be meeting with Benton County, 
the City of Philomath, the School District and other representatives to hear their concerns and questions 
regarding the possibility of setting up a Parks and Recreation District. PNARB will review the study 
and make a recommendation to the City Council.  
 

V. CITY COUNCIL/OSU LIAISON REPORTS.  
Liaison Hirsch related that John Sassaman will become the new Chief of Police in June; he has spent 
his entire career here and is well-respected and liked. He highlighted a current discussion on how to 
reduce use of plastic bags; one current idea is to charge for them, not ban them. Research is underway 
on how other countries are addressing the issue. He welcomed input on how to address the issue. He 
highlighted the “Bag It” video available.  
 

VI. REPORT ON SUBCOMMITTEES 
Becki Goslow distributed reports and photos of the Saturday, February 25 Central Park Plaza dedication 
ceremony. She related that it went smoothly. The donor of the trees attended. Passmore said pallets of 
former Plaza pavers are being sold at Habitat for Humanity. Goslow said Parks staff did a great job.  
 
Goslow stated that the downtown cleanup project is scheduled for March 31; she distributed a 
description. She highlighted the upcoming Spring Garden Festival. 
 
She said that CBUF will only be working in a supportive role in DCA’s upcoming downtown tree well 
project. Merja related she was asked by the DCA to break the Central Business District down into 
zones, to help delineate where different volunteer groups will work. She and other staff and Madison 
Avenue Task Force representatives will meet with the DCA to discuss the project on March 13. Goslow 
said it would be easy to assign groups to adopted blocks; it doesn’t have to be complicated. Merja said 
there will be opportunities for different size groups to clean up areas that are proportionate to their size. 
Merja said CBUF and Parks can help the DCA set up the program to help keep the city clean; we can 
learn from this project.  
 
Rehkugler asked whether the subcommittees had decided on names; Goslow stated that it was now the 
Civic Beautification Committee. Rehkugler suggested the other subcommittee be named the Urban 
Forestry Committee. There was consensus on the names. 
 



Minutes of Civic Beautification and Urban Forestry Commission, March 8, 2012 Page 3 

 

Passmore reported the Urban Forestry Committee changed the name of “Neighborhood Foresters” to 
“Tree Stewards”. They will be the liaison between neighbors and the city for the project. Tom Cook 
will be a Tree Steward for his neighborhood; he related that Cook came forward with maps of his area. 
The group agreed to include intersections as well as streets. There was discussion on how to help Tree 
Stewards, such as with notifications, such as door hangers.  
 
There was a discussion of possible tree species; five large trees were chosen. Hayes Avenue has power 
lines on one side, so there will be tall trees on the other side and short ones under the lines. They will 
try to develop a pattern of tree species that can be used in other neighborhoods as well. They are trying 
to give Merja flexibility on species to be able to take advantage of good opportunities on inexpensive 
available trees for sale. They are also trying to present property owners a choice of trees, as well.  
 
Parkerson praised the draft letter of introduction and the helpful visual of the map. Passmore suggested 
photographing a street with trees and then photoshopping it into a street currently without many trees to 
help show residents visually what their street could look like; like a before and after. Parkerson stated it 
was a good idea; he said College Hill West and Franklin Square could be good visual tree examples.  
 
Merja said Cook is hoping to complete his study of his area by April 15; the project will tackle the 
south side this year (from Kings Boulevard to 29th on Hayes Street) and the north side next year; it’s a 
big job. In May, Cook will contact homeowners, in June plans will be finalized, trees will be ordered in 
July, any needed tree removals will be done in August, with an October tree planting party. The project 
should serve as a good template.  
 
Parkerson and Rehkugler offered to walk the area with Cook, to get familiar with the project. Merja 
said the letter of introduction will help Cook in making contact with residents. Parkerson suggested 
contacting the affected Ward Councilor; that is Hirsch this year; Liaison Hirsch said it becomes Jeanne 
Raymond’s ward in June, following re-districting. Merja highlighted a project meeting at 10:30 a.m. 
this Friday with Cook; a walkthrough can be scheduled then.  
 
Rehkugler related there was a wonderful farewell ceremony at a recent City Council meeting to honor 
former CBUF member Helen Ellis. Hirsch related that in the past, former Mayor Tomlinson used 
CBUF as an example of how an advisory board or commission should operate, and Ellis was 
responsible for setting the bar that high; however, he didn’t get the opportunity to say so at the 
ceremony.  
 
Commissioners reported that former members Walt Schmidt and Merritt Jensen attended. Rehkugler 
said events like this will be used as an opportunity to invite previous CBUF members to participate and 
stay in touch; twenty invitations to these former members were sent out.  
 

VII. BREAK INTO SUBCOMMITTEES. 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT: The regular meeting adjourned at 9:15 A.M. 


